
 

Agenda No. 2018–23 November 19, 2018 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2018–23 

REGULAR MEETING NOVEMBER 19, 2018 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

WORK SESSION 

5:30 p.m. – Fairbanks Economic Development Corp. Annual Report & Presentation 

 
It is the mission of the City of Fairbanks to provide quality essential services to all City residents 

to ensure Fairbanks is a vibrant place to live, work, thrive, and visit.    

 
REGULAR MEETING 

6:30 p.m. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CEREMONIAL MATTERS (Proclamations, Introductions, Recognitions, Awards) 
 
 
5. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, oral communications to the City Council on any item 

not up for public hearing.  Testimony is limited to three minutes, and the 
comment period will end no later than 7:30 p.m.  Any person wishing to speak 
needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of 
decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be 
directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, please silence all cell 
phones and electronic devices.  

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member 
so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General 
Agenda.  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 1 of 38



 

Agenda No. 2018–23 November 19, 2018 Page 2 of 3 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
*a) Regular Meeting Minutes of July 23, 2018 
 
 

8. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 
following Liquor License Applications for Renewal.  Public Testimony will 
be taken and limited to three minutes.   

 
Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address 

4464 Fred Meyer #224 Package Store Fred Meyer Stores, Inc. 930 Old Steese Hwy 

328 Drop In Lounge Beverage Dispensary N & P Enterprises, LLC 1420 S. Cushman Street 

 
 
9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
  a) Special Reports 
 
 
10. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

 a) Ordinance No. 6089 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code 
Chapter 46, Article IV, Offenses Involving Nuisances, by Enacting Division 
4, Illegal Campsites.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  SECOND READING 
AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
12. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4853 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 
Apply for Funds from the Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation Grant 
Program.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.   

 
 
13. DISCUSSION ITEMS (Information and Reports)  
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 

14. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 *a) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of September 5, 2018 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 2 of 38



 

Agenda No. 2018–23 November 19, 2018 Page 3 of 3 

 
 *b) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of October 3, 2018 
 
 
15. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
16. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
17. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 

18. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

 a) PSEA Labor Negotiations 
 
 b) FFU Labor Negotiations 
 
 c) IBEW Labor Negotiations 

 
 
19. ADJOURNMENT 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 3 of 38



 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, JULY 23, 2018 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 
 

The City Council convened at 7:00 p.m. on the above date to conduct a Regular Meeting of the 
Fairbanks City Council at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, 
with Mayor Jim Matherly presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Joy Huntington, Seat A 

June Rogers, Seat B 
Valerie Therrien, Seat C 
Jonathan Bagwill, Seat D 
Jerry Cleworth, Seat E 
David Pruhs, Seat F 
 

Absent: None 
 

Also Present: Paul Ewers, City Attorney 
D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 
Mike Meeks, Chief of Staff 
Stephanie Johnson, Dispatch Center Manager 
Patricia Manuel, HR Admin 
Carmen Randle, Chief Financial Officer 
Angela Foster-Snow, HR Director 
Jim Styers, Fire Chief 
Scott Raygor, Firefighter 
Brad Johnson, Deputy Police Chief 
 

City Clerk Danyielle Snider read the Mission Statement of the City of Fairbanks.   
 
INVOCATION 
 
The Invocation was given by City Clerk Danyielle Snider. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
Mayor Matherly asked Mr. Bagwill to lead the Flag Salutation. 
 
CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 
Mayor Matherly recognized Firefighter Daniel Turner for his service and for performing CPR 
while off duty on a man at a campground.  Mr. Turner stated he just did what he had learned in 
his training, and he encouraged everyone to take a CPR certification class.   
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS ON CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Frank Turney, 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney stated he did not attend the last 
Diversity Council meeting, and those minutes are on the consent agenda.  He stated that he 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 4 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 11 

noticed the body broke out in smaller groups but that there was no discussion about racial 
discrimination in the jury pool; he stated it is an important topic that needs to be addressed.   
 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Bagwill, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Mayor Matherly requested that the Executive Sessions be removed from the Agenda.   
 

Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
City Clerk Snider read the Consent Agenda into the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2018. 
 

APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
a) The Fairbanks City Council heard interested citizens concerned with the following 

application for a New Marijuana Product Manufacturing Facility License: 
 

Type:  Marijuana Product Manufacturing Facility, License #15800 
DBA:  Baked Alaska, LLC 
Applicant: Baked Alaska, LLC 
Address: 2745 Hanson Road, Unit B, Fairbanks, Alaska 

 
Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Ms. Therrien, moved to PROTEST the New Marijuana Product 
Manufacturing Facility until a Certificate of Occupancy is issued by the Building Department.   
 
Frank Turney, 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney spoke in support of the license.   
 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Mr. Pruhs stated he supports the license because he knows that Ms. Ranstead is the right person 
for the job.   
 
Ms. Rogers asked the applicants to share some information as to how they came into the 
industry; she asked them to share some personal information about their journey.    
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 5 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 11 

Audrey Ranstead, P.O. Box 83573, Fairbanks – Ms. Ranstead stated she has worked in the food 
industry for a long time and when marijuana became legal in 2014, making edibles piqued her 
interest.  She stated Mr. Hallsten owns the building, and she brings food experience to the table; 
she stated they submitted the application to AMCO last November.  She stated she is a rule 
follower and that she is excited Fairbanks has embraced the industry.   
 
Steve Hallsten, 1062 Dolphin Way, Fairbanks – Mr. Hallsten stated his background is in 
construction, and when Ms. Ranstead approached him about using his facility he was initially 
concerned about the stigma associated with the industry.  He stated that they each have their own 
businesses and that they are going to make this their side business.  He stated if the business 
grows he may consider making it his full-time job.   
 
Ms. Rogers thanked Ms. Ranstead and Mr. Hallsten for helping her connect with them.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated he has seen a lot of cultivation and retail marijuana licenses, but not many 
manufacturing licenses have come before the Council; he asked how many there were inside the 
City.  Ms. Ranstead stated she did not know how many are in the City but that the manufacturing 
license is the most difficult one to obtain.  Mr. Cleworth asked whether the company that lost 
their license about a year ago were manufacturers; Ms. Ranstead stated those owners had 
cultivation, retail, and manufacturing licenses, and they lost their retail and manufacturing 
licenses.   
 
Mr. Pruhs discussed the business location with Mr. Hallsten.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO PROTEST THE NEW 
MARIJUANA PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITY UNTIL A CERTIFICATE OF 
OCCUPANCY IS ISSUED BY THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT AS FOLLOWS: 
   
  YEAS:  Pruhs, Therrien, Huntington, Cleworth, Rogers 
  NAYS: Bagwill 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.   
 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
a) Special Reports 
 
Brittany Smart, 907 Terminal Street, Fairbanks – Ms. Smart reported on upcoming public 
hearing items that will go before the Borough Assembly.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Ms. Smart if there was a reserve fund set aside to deal with the Mary Siah 
Recreation Center; Ms. Smart stated she would have to follow-up with a response at a later time.   
 
Mayor Matherly spoke to the recent loss of Bryan Imus; he extended his thoughts and prayers 
to Mr. Imus’ family.  He stated that Mr. Imus was in City Hall the previous week dealing with 
labor issues and that Mr. Imus was a former City of Fairbanks Public Works employee who later 
took a position at the Laborers Hall.  Mayor Matherly stated the Golden Days Parade was a lot 
of fun, but it was a very hot day.  He stated that he attended the street fair with his boys and had 
a really nice time.  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 6 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 11 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a) Ordinance No. 6079, as Amended – An Ordinance Ratifying a Labor Agreement 

Between the City of Fairbanks and the Fairbanks Firefighters Union, IAFF Local 1324.  
Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  POSTPONED from the Regular Meeting of July 9, 
2018; a Public Hearing was held at that time. 

 
City Clerk Danyielle Snider noted that the motion to adopt is on the floor from the July 9, 2018 
Regular Council meeting.  
 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, moved to SUBSTITUTE the amended Fiscal Note for 
Ordinance No. 6079, as Amended. 
 
Mayor Matherly called for objection to the motion to SUBSTITUTE, and Mr. Cleworth 
objected.  
 
Mr. Cleworth stated he objected to the substitution because the fiscal note that was advanced is 
broader and reflects a three-year projection.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO SUBSTITUTE THE AMENDED 
FISCAL NOTE FOR ORDINANCE NO. 6079, AS AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Therrien 
NAYS: Rogers, Pruhs, Bagwill, Huntington, Cleworth 
Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION FAILED. 

 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Cleworth, moved to SUBSTITUTE the proposed labor contract 
to include language regarding the “Janus law.”  
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that if anyone is confused by “Janus law” language, they should ask City 
Attorney Paul Ewers.   
 
Mr. Ewers gave a report on the changes to the proposed contract substitute.  He explained the 
change that union membership would no longer be required as a condition of employment with 
the City.  He stated that the definition of a “member” in the contract was also redefined.  He 
explained that there were also changes made to sections 10.4 and 10.5 in regard to the deduction 
of union dues.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO SUBSTITUTE THE PROPOSED 
LABOR CONTRACT TO INCLUDE LANGUAGE REGARDING THE “JANUS LAW” AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Pruhs, Therrien, Huntington, Cleworth, Bagwill, Rogers 
  NAYS: None   
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.  
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 7 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 11 

Chief of Staff Mike Meeks explained the changes in the contract.  He stated the union agreed to 
the following during negotiations:  drug testing, dropping the City’s contribution for union leave, 
improving Workers’ Comp, dropping one firefighter from manning the aerial platform, reducing 
three captains by making them firefighters, improving the internship program, reducing the 
clothing and bedding allowance, and dropping the admin physicals.  He stated that the City 
agreed to a three-year financial package based on the Anchorage CPI with a minimum of 1.5% 
and a maximum of 3%, an increase in minimum manning from nine to eleven 50 of the time with 
an understanding that the City may opt out if ground emergency medical transport (GEMT) 
funding does not materialize, language requiring that the agreement revert to the language in the 
previous contract if the if the City non-funds the Fairbanks Firefighters Union (FFU) contract, 
and four hours of employee retention leave (ERL) for every year worked with certain 
restrictions.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Chief Financial Officer Carmen Randle for a staff report and asked her to 
hit the highlights of the fiscal note.  Ms. Randle explained that she had Controller Margarita Bell 
go over the numbers with a fine-tooth comb, then she also reviewed them carefully.  Ms. Randle 
spoke to City revenues being relatively stagnant over the next few years.  She projected an 
increase in property and marijuana taxes in coming years, a decrease in inter-governmental 
revenues, an increase in GEMT funding and Fairbanks Emergency Communications Center 
(FECC) contracts, and an increase in garbage collection revenue.  Ms. Randle spoke to the three-
year forecast of City expenses, including projected costs for other labor agreements. 
 
Ms. Therrien asked when the GEMT funding is expected to come in; Ms. Randle replied that 
the funding cannot start accruing until the State goes through the public notice and tribal notice 
process.   
 
Fire Chief Jim Styers clarified that the effective date for reimbursement will be the date of the 
public and tribal notice and that funds would probably not start coming in for another 18 months.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that Ms. Randle’s cost projection for the International Brotherhood of 
Electrical Workers (IBEW) and the Public Safety Employees Association (PSEA) is a best-case 
scenario.  He stated that in 2014 when he was not on the Council, the Council realized the PSEA 
contract was not affordable.  He stated the Council’s vote on the contract was split, and the 
Mayor at the time voted to ratify the ordinance which was later reconsidered.  Mr. Cleworth 
stated if the Council would have followed the Fairbanks General Code they would not be in the 
position they are currently in with the PSEA.  He stated the Code requires that the Council limit 
personal leave to reasonable levels, and that is why he does not support bonus leave.  He stated 
he received emails from former City of Fairbanks Chief Financial Officers Ron Woolf and Jim 
Soileau advising that the Council not approve the contract as written with bonus leave included.  
Mr. Cleworth read the emails into the record.  He commented that other bargaining units will 
want the same benefits firefighters are given.  He stated bonus leave does have an associated cost 
to the City.  He stated if comp time is billed, leave banks can be built up and cashed out, and the 
same applies to bonus leave.  He commented that the FFU contract is the only contract in the 
City to have minimum manning requirements.  Mr. Cleworth stated that $461,000 in overtime is 
a lot of money.  He listed reasons not to raise minimum staffing from nine to eleven and 
commented that paying overtime to keep up with minimum staffing is the least effective way to 
do business.  He spoke against funding the contract because it is too expensive and that if the 
ordinance passes, he sees problems arising relating to staffing.  He stated he does not know why 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 8 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 11 

there is an increase in ambulance calls, but he would like to investigate the issue before moving 
forward with the contract.  
 
Mr. Pruhs commended the Council for the questions being asked about the contract.  He 
thanked staff for looking at long-term financials to help the Council make an informed decision.    
 
Ms. Therrien shared her concern for the Fire Department not being able to keep up with the call 
volume and stated that the contract would solve that problem.  She stated if the Council is 
unwilling to approve the contract, they should hire more firefighters to help decrease overtime.  
She stated the contract provides for a third ambulance to be on shift, and she believes that is 
important.  She asked which fiscal note is being discussed; Ms. Randle replied that they are 
discussing the first fiscal note.    
 
Ms. Huntington expressed confusion about the vote on the proposed substitute fiscal note for 
Ordinance No. 6079, as Amended.  She indicated that she may want to reconsider that vote if the 
fiscal note before the Council is inaccurate.  Ms. Randle indicated that the GEMT recovery funds 
listed in the fiscal note are not accurate because the receipt date of the funds is unknown and will 
not occur in 2019.   
 
Chief of Staff Mike Meeks stated that revenues and expenditures are exaggerated in the fiscal 
note before the Council and is inaccurate.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that if the Council accepts GEMT funds, the funds would be “dedicated” 
according to the proposed fiscal note, which is against State law.  City Attorney Ewers explained 
that the GEMT funds would go into the General Fund, and the cost of the contract would come 
out of the General Fund.  Mr. Cleworth stated that if the City receives the GEMT funds, it 
would be required to bump minimum staffing to eleven at the Fire Department.  He stated both 
fiscal notes are inaccurate, and the Council needs to see correct numbers before moving forward.   
 
Mr. Pruhs asked if other labor contracts use dedicated funds.  Mr. Ewers clarified again that the 
funds are not dedicated, and he explained the purpose of identifying a funding source for 
ordinances and resolutions.  He stated the funds would not be dedicated to the contract; rather, 
they would be identified as the source of funding for the contract.  
 
Ms. Huntington, seconded by Ms. Therrien, moved to RECONSIDER the motion to substitute 
the amended fiscal note for Ordinance No. 6079, as Amended.   
 
Mr. Cleworth spoke in opposition to the amended fiscal note.   
 
Ms. Huntington stated that fiscal forecasts are necessary and are part of the process; she stated 
that the Council does not have a crystal ball, but she would like to move forward with the most 
up-to-date fiscal information.  She stated that she would like to see the Council move forward 
with the firefighters contract and expressed her support for it.   
 
Ms. Therrien indicated that the proposed substitute fiscal note better reflects the fiscal impact of 
the ordinance.  She stated the numbers can be looked from a negative point of view or a positive 
point of view, and she urged the Council to reconsider the motion.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 9 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 11 

Mr. Cleworth stated if the City receives GEMT funds, the funds must go toward the contract.  
He argued that the current fiscal note better demonstrates the true cost of the contract, and he 
wants the general public to understand that.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO RECONSIDER THE MOTION 
TO SUBSTITUTE THE AMENDED FISCAL NOTE FOR ORDINANCE NO. 6079, AS 
AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 
   
  YEAS:  Therrien, Huntington 
  NAYS: Rogers, Pruhs, Bagwill, Cleworth 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION FAILED.  
 
Ms. Huntington spoke to negotiating in good faith and indicated that she would like to add 
some positive momentum to labor negotiations.  She stated that working together would be a 
good thing for everyone involved and that she would like to see forward motion on the firefighter 
contract.  She stated that negotiating means a give and take on both sides and that she would be 
voting to approve the contract. 
 
Mr. Bagwill commended the negotiation team for coming up with solutions to the contract.  He 
stated he had questions about the bonus leave that two former City CFOs have spoken against.  
He stated he has learned in Finance Committee meetings that the cost of the bonus leave is too 
much, so he does not think he can support the contract for that reason.  He stated Mr. Cleworth 
spoke at the Finance Committee meeting why funding bonus leave is not good for the City.   
 
Ms. Therrien stated she did not remember the issue of bonus leave ever being mentioned in the 
direction given by the Council.  
 
Mr. Pruhs stated the numbers have changed radically and that the City cannot afford to fund the 
contract.  He stated that he is now seeing the full fiscal aspect of the contract, and he cannot in 
good faith support it due to the unknowns.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated the three-year projection that they are looking at does not include bonus 
leave, but if the contract is approved, every other union would ask for the same benefit.  He 
stated that the Code says when a contract is signed a funding source has to be identified, and that 
is not the case with this contract.  He stated there is no funding source for the contract and 
advised the Council against accepting its terms.  He stated two former City CFO’s have advised 
the Council not to approve the language regarding bonus leave.   
 
Ms. Rogers stated that she appreciates what everyone has to say about the contract and thanked 
everyone for all the effort put forth.  She stated the Council has arrived at a point of confusion, 
and it is not a good place to be in when making a decision.  She stated that any time there is 
confusion around making a major decision, it is best to take a step back before moving forward.   
 
Mayor Matherly stated he appreciates the Council’s input and concern surrounding the contract, 
but he is not confused by its terms.  He stated the Fire Department cannot pick and choose which 
calls they respond to.  He spoke about the ride-along he went on with the firefighters and 
commented that the department serves many people who are not City residents.  He stated that 
City has lost mutual aid, and there is an increase in the mission of the Fire Department.  He 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 10 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 11 

spoke to the negotiation process and to the number of things the FFU gave up.  Mayor Matherly 
stated he respects Finance Committee members, but things have changed since those CFOs 
worked at the City.  He stated that the Council has indicated that they do not want increased 
overtime or increased staff through a Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
(SAFER) grant, so he questioned what solution they would like.   
 
Ms. Rogers stated she is confused by the statement that the Council does not support a SAFER 
grant because she recalls that only Mr. Cleworth was against it.  She stated she would like more 
clarity moving forward.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that in the previous budget cycle, the Mayor proposed dropping two 
firefighters, but the Council pushed to only lose one.  He stated the SAFER grant is a bill for half 
a million dollars, and that is why he voted against it.   
 
Ms. Rogers stated that the firefighters have her heart, but the Council is bound by rules in the 
Code.  She stated that the issue requires more observation.   
 
Mr. Bagwill asked if this year’s contract cost would be recovered through GEMT funds; Ms. 
Randle stated the 2018 and 2019 funds would not be recovered until 2020.  Mr. Bagwill asked 
why the Council would approve the contract if they know the funds will not be recovered for 
three years.  Ms. Randle explained the reasons why the fiscal note was revised; she stated that 
there was a change made at the State level that changed the date of recovery for GEMT funds.   
 
Mr. Meeks explained that each fiscal note has a top part and a bottom part.  He stated that the 
bottom portion deals with the increase to minimum staffing which is directly dependent upon the 
City receiving GEMT funds.  He stated that the remainder of the contract would still go into 
effect upon approval of the ordinance, but that the increase in minimum manning would end after 
December 31, 2018 if GEMT funds were not received from the State.   
 
Mr. Bagwill asked Ms. Randle for the cost of the contract; Ms. Randle stated it would cost 
$137,000 for the first year; she stated that the total cost beyond that would be affected by the 
timing of the GEMT funds.  Mr. Bagwill asked about the total cost of the contract excluding the 
minimum manning/GEMT issue.  Ms. Randle explained the total estimated cost each year for 
three years, excluding the GEMT/minimum manning item.  Mr. Bagwill asked what that 
$498,769.95 dollar amount would equate to in a percentage increase for the FFU.   
 
Mayor Matherly called for a brief recess.   
 
Ms. Randle, in response to Mr. Bagwill’s question prior to the break, stated that the cost would 
be equivalent to an 8.5% increase over three years.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that in one year the FFU would increase two to three times more than the  
increase given to the AFL-CIO.  He stated he did not know how the Council would be able to 
explain the lack of funding for snow removal if they funded the FFU contract.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 6079, AS 
AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 11 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 11 

  YEAS:  Huntington, Therrien 
  NAYS: Bagwill, Cleworth, Rogers, Pruhs 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION FAILED.  
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
a) Committee Reports 
 
Public Safety Commission (PSC) – Ms. Huntington stated the PSC met but she was unable to 
attend due to travel.  She asked Mayor Matherly if he attended and could make a report.  Mayor 
Matherly stated the meeting was held at Public Works, and members were able to tour the 
facility.  He stated that members were able to gain a better understanding of what Public Works 
does.   
 
FMATS Policy Board – Mr. Cleworth stated that FMATS is one step closer to becoming 
autonomous and that it has been a long process.  He stated they have been stumbling through the 
personnel policy that is already up to 40 pages in length and relates to only two and a half 
employees.  He stated they are hoping it will be an independent non-profit by October 1. 
 
Mayor Matherly stated the official documents to change FMATS to FAST Planning have been 
received, and he thanked Deputy City Attorney Danielle Pensley for all her work on the project.   
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
a) Public Safety Commission Meeting Minutes of January 9, 2018 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Public Safety Commission Special Meeting Minutes of January 30, 2018 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
c) Public Safety Commission Special Meeting Minutes of February 22, 2018 
  
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.  
 
d) Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2018 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
e) Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2018 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   
 
f) Fairbanks Diversity Council Work Session Minutes of June 12, 2018 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   
  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 12 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 11 

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 
 
Katherine Ottersten, 1435 3rd Avenue, Fairbanks – Ms. Ottersten thanked the Mayor and Ms. 
Rogers for all their work in setting up the Fairbanks Diversity Council table for the Golden Days 
event.  She shared that there is still an open seat on the FNSB School Board.  She stated political 
signs are being stolen and defaced, and she wanted to make the Council aware of the animosity 
out there.    
 
Frank Turney, 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney spoke to the incident that happened at 
the July 4 celebration at Pioneer Park.  He stated after testifying about it at the last Council 
meeting he got a visit from Officer Kurt Lockwood at his home to inquire about his statements 
regarding the incident.  Mr. Turney stated he was told the incident involved mistaken identity, 
and he asked the Mayor to look into the issue further.   
 
Victor Buberge, P.O. Box 58192, Fairbanks – Mr. Buberge asked that Public Works take a look 
at 26th Avenue and Cushman because there has been a big pothole there all summer.  He asked 
the Council to allow volunteers to work at the Fire Department.  He asked that the Council open 
Executive Sessions to the public and that a Council member told him it would be illegal to do so.  
He reported a story of a friend that was shot 63 times by police officers and reported that the 
police are not as great as they think they are.   
 
Michael Farrell, P.O. Box 72822, Fairbanks – Mr. Farrell stated the Council made a wise choice 
by voting down the FFU contract.  He stated he believes the administration should communicate 
better with the Council because there appears to be a complete disconnect.  He stated he believes 
investigating the increased call volume is pointless because if the answer is not politically 
correct, the results will not be shared.  
 
Shoshanna Kun, 326 Wedgewood Drive, Fairbanks – Ms. Kun thanked the Council for serving 
and thanked the City Clerk for keeping proper procedures during the meetings.  She encouraged 
community members to consider joining a board and representing their community.   
 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Mayor Matherly explained to Mr. Turney that an employee of Pioneer Park reported to police 
that he saw a man with a machete and identified him to police officers.  He stated that once the 
officers questioned the man, they realized he was the wrong person.  Officers spoke to the man 
who was approached and explained the situation, and the man was understanding of the issue.  
He stated officers later found the correct man, and he was taken into custody without incident.   
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Huntington acknowledged the hard work of the negotiation teams involved in the FFU 
contract.  She stated she hopes the Council can continue moving in a positive direction with 
labor negotiations.  She offered her condolences to the family of Bryan Imus and spoke to how 
much the Imus’ have done for the community.  
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 13 of 38



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 23, 2018 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 11 

Ms. Rogers stated she is grateful for the work that has gone into the labor negotiations because it 
is a lengthy process.  She stated she wants what is best for everyone – not just for the people in 
the room but for citizens, taxpayers, children,  and employees.   
 
Ms. Therrien stated she enjoyed watching the Golden Days Parade with her granddaughter, and 
it was nice to see how much of the community came out to enjoy the events of the day.   
 
Mr. Pruhs gave his condolences to the family of Bryan Imus and spoke to how sad the news 
was.  He stated he is still recovering from the Alaska BBQ Championships over the weekend and 
that he and his team held their own. 
 
Mr. Cleworth stated it is good to see Mr. Meeks back and in better health.  He stated he 
remembers when Bryan Imus was a Public Works employee and shared what a good person he 
was.  Mr. Cleworth stated he would like to have a better understanding of why the call volume 
has increased so much for the Fire Department.  He asked if interns and volunteers could be used 
to fulfill minimum manning requirements and stated that he would like to discuss the issue at a 
Finance Committee meeting.  
 
Mr. Bagwill stated it is good to see Mr. Meeks back and almost at full strength.  He offered his 
condolences to the family of Bryan Imus and asked that people remember the joy he brought to 
everyone’s lives.  Mr. Bagwill stated he got the letter from the City Clerk that Michelle 
Gutierrez’s last day at the City would be July 31 and stated that it would not be fun trying to 
replace her.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Bagwill, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Matherly declared the meeting adjourned at 9:58 p.m. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
JIM MATHERLY, MAYOR   

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
D. DANYIELLE SNIDER, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by:  EB 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 14 of 38



City of Fairbanks Office of the City Clerk 

800 Cushman Street Farrbanks,AK. 99701 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Jim Matherly and City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk @ 
SUBJECT: Liquor License Renewals 

DATE: November 14, 2018 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 
following liquor license renewals: 

Lie.# DBA License Type Licensee Address 

4464 Fred Meyer #224 Package Store Fred Meyer Stores, Inc. 930 Old Steese Hwy 

328 Drop In Lounge Beverage Dispensary N & P Enterprises, LLC 1420 S. Cushman Street 

Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council must determine whether or not to protest liquor license 
renewals after holding a public hearing. 

Per the Council's request, the Police Department has included a call report for the locations 
listed. 

There are no departmental protests to the above-listed applications for renewal. Please 
contact me if you need any further information. 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 15 of 38



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY 
FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy 

10/14/2017 - 10/14/2018 

Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

10/12/2018 15:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 10/12/2018 16:31:59 

10/12/2018 14:11 REDDI 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 10/12/2018 14:57:2€ 

10/10/2018 15:31 FRAUD/FORGERY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESKNRP 10/10/201815:40:36 

18003645 10/10/2018 14 :42 TH EFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 017 RPT 10/10/2018 15:43:42 

10/09/2018 15:35 MVC - NO INJURIES- 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 10/09/2018 16:24:01 

10/08/201814:05 DUI - PARKED - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 NRP 10/08/2018 14:30:22 

18003602 10/07/2018 12:55 THEFT FROM 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 10/07/201813:41:55 

10/07/2018 05:33 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 041 UTC 10/07/2018 07:37:17 

10/06/2018 17:20 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY 017 NRP 10/06/2018 17:44:22 

10/05/2018 21 :57 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 10/05/2018 22:06:51 

10/04/2018 17:55 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 021 SUBL 10/04/2018 18:04:54 

10/03/2018 14:25 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 10/03/201814:31:41 

10/02/2018 18:58 MVC - 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 10/02/2018 19: 15:4C 

18003518 09/30/2018 21 :54 THEFT FROM 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 RPT 09/30/2018 22:47:07 

18003516 09/30/201818:32 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 09/30/2018 21:50:0C 

18003514 09/30/201816:06 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY S8 RPT 09/30/2018 16:45:04 

18003513 09/30/201815:25 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 09/30/2018 15:40:04 

09/30/2018 12:04 PAST TRAFFIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY CBW 09/30/2018 12:39:59 

18003507 09/29/2018 22:12 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 09/29/2018 22:15:57 

18003506 09/29/2018 20:51 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 RPT 09/30/2018 00:25: 16 

09/28/2018 21:42 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 09/28/2018 21 :55:41 

09/28/2018 16:54 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DEF 09/28/2018 21:58:06 

09/27/2018 21:35 SI - FIELD CONTACT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 09/27/2018 21 :38:49 

09/27/2018 21 :01 MVC - NO INJURIES· 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 NRP 09/27/2018 21:46:51 

09/27/201819:23 SI· FIELD CONTACT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 09/27/201819:44:42 

09/27/2018 18:45 SUSPICIOUS 930 OLD STEESE HWY CBW 09/27/201818:53:39 

09/27/2018 15:32 SUSPICIOUS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 09/27/2018 18:04:38 

09/26/2018 21 :15 LOST PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 09/26/2018 21:25:21 

09/26/2018 16:30 PAST ROAD RAGE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 09/26/201817:23:27 

18003467 09/25/201815:15 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 09/25/201816:21:12 

09/24/2018 20:50 SI -VID 930 OLD STEESE HWY VIP1 NRP 09/24/2018 20:52:01 

09/23/2018 16:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 09/23/2018 16:56:22 

09/21/201818:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 NRP 09/21 /201·8 18:26:01 

09/21/2018 16:23 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 NRP 09/21/2018 16:58:3C 

18003391 09/18/201819:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 09/18/2018 21 :11 :27 

09/18/201815:50 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 021 NRP 09/18/201815:55:5e 

09/17/2018 19:47 URGENT WELFARE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 09/17/2018 20:11 :~ 

09/17/201819:15 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 09/17/201819:19:12 

09/17/201815:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 09/17/2018 15:20: 14 

18003343 09/15/201811:34 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 09/1512018 11:42:04 

18003337 09/14/2018 17:10 WANTED PERSON · 930 OLD STEESE HWY S5 RPT 09/14/2018 18:02:49 

Report Generated: 10/15/2018 10:05:24 I User ID: 1225 

\Vecc-aoo\ossicad\cad\rot\Even/Historv EventListWithReoortNumbers o~no i "'' 1 City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 16 of 38



Prime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

09/14/2018 09:23 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 0911412018 09:56:4e 

18003309 09/12/2018 14:23 AOA- NON URGENT - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 RPT 09/12/2018 15:27:12 

09/11/2018 13:14 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 09/11/2018 13:47:42 

09/10/2018 23:13 OFFICER ADVICE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 041 NRP 09/11/2018 00:14:4C 

09/10/2018 13:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 09/10/2018 13:40:32 

09/09/2018 21 :05 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 09/09/2018 21:43:32 

09/09/2018 20:13 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY S8 NRP 09/09/2018 21: 15: 1 € 

18003269 09/09/2018115:48 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 09/09/2018 18:25:07 

09/08/2018 20:14 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 NRP 09/08/2018 20:20:32 

18003255 09/08/201817:10 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 09/08/2018 18:00:5e 

18003174 09/06/201812:25 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 09/06/2018 12:51 :54 

18003174 09/06/2018 09:27 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 09/06/2018 09:48:01 

09/05/2018 16:06 NUISANCE - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 021 NRP 09/05/201816:25:49 

09/05/2018 05:51 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 09/05/2018 05:54:57 

18003272 09/04/2018 14:42 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY S8 NRP 09/04/2018 14:57:34 

18003187 09/04/2018 03:27 PAST DOMESTIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 RPT 09/04/2018 05:27:29 

09/03/2018 21:12 CIVIL PROBLEM 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 09/03/2018 21:15:2e 

18003174 09/03/2018 13:54 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 09/03/2018 14:08:01 

09/02/201819:25 PARKING COMPLAINT 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 09/02/2018 19:27:32 

18003174 09/02/2018 08:46 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 09/02/2018 09:20:4C 

09/01/2018 20:46 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 WAR 09/01/2018 20:50:27 

09/01/2018 20:22 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 0910112018 20:26: 1 e 
09/01/201811:37 DAMAGENANDAUSM 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 09/01/2018 11 :54:11 

08/31/2018 16:09 INCAPACITATED 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 08/31/201816:25:47 

08/31/2018 16:09 MUTUAL AID 930 OLD STEESE HWY ACCI 08/31/2018 16:09:32 

08/31/201816:08 INCAPACITATED 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 0813112018 16:12:4e 

08/31/201816:08 INCAPACITATED 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 08/31/2018 16:10:5!: 

08/31/201815:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 0813112018 16:19:2e 

18003151 08/31/201813:34 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 RPT 08/3112018 15:58:1e 

08/31/2018 05:24 ALARM BURGLARY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 021 NRP 08/31/2018 05:40:14 

08/30/2018 21 :05 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 08/30/2018 21:07:54 

08/30/2018 14:54 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 08/30/2018 15:27:51 

08/28/2018 18:58 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 08/28/2018 19:15:04 

08/28/2018 12:58 HIT & RUN 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 08/28/2018 13:01 :oe 
18003095 08/27/2018 20:50 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 08/27/2018 21:30:41 

08/26/2018 15:58 WANTED VEHICLE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 08/26/2018 16:03:42 

18003067 08/25/2018 21:40 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 08/25/2018 22:14:29 

18003065 08/25/201817:53 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 08/25/2018 18:12:oe 

18003056 08/25/2018 11:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 041 RPT 08/25/2018 12: 19:54 

18002885 08/24/2018 20:43 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 08/24/2018 21 :08:2C 

08/24/2018 20:26 SUPP- 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 08/24/2018 20:45:57 

18003044 08/24/2018 17:34 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 RPT 08/24/2018 18:18:52 

08/24/2018 16:37 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 08/24/2018 16:38: 16 

08/23/2018 16:26 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 08/23/2018 16:33:26 

18002885 08/23/2018 15:47 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 08/23/2018 15:56:36 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy Page 2 of 1 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 17 of 38



Report# Call Time Nature Location 
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time 

08/22/2018 17:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 SUBL 08/22/2018 18:07:06 

08/22/2018 15:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 08/22/2018 16:39:44 

08/20/2018 21:01 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 08/20/2018 21 :28:31 

18002974 08/19/2018 17:25 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 08/19/2018 17:48:32 

08/18/2018 22:26 HARASSMENT· 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 08/18/2018 23:31:17 

08/18/2018 18:15 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 08/18/2018 18:39:1€ 

08/18/2018 17:01 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY TOT 08/18/2018 17:03:42 

08/18/2018 15:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 08/18/2018 15:57:3€ 

18002885 08/16/2018 15:24 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 08/16/2018 16:28:3C 

18002885 08/15/2018 19:31 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 08/15/2018 19:38:42 

18002885 08/15/2018 15:39 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 08/15/2018 15:45:59 

18002897 08/13/2018 16:52 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 041 RPT 08/13/2018 17:57:39 

08/12/2018 22:36 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY CBW 08/13/2018 00:13:14 

08/12/2018 18:49 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 08/12/201818:51:52 

18002885 08/12/2018 17:20 FRAUD/FORGERY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 08/12/2018 19:08:31 

08/12/2018 17:00 AOA • NON URGENT - 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 08/12/2018 17:22:0C 

18002873 08/12/2018 15:22 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 08/12/2018 16:01:37 

18002873 08/11/2018 22:17 HIT & RUN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 08/11/2018 23:47:44 

08/11/2018 12:39 URGENT WELFARE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 041 NRP 08/11/2018 12:55:5C 

08/10/2018 20:01 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 08/10/2018 20:44:0E 

08/10/2018 18:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 CALL 08/10/2018 19:03: 12 

08/09/2018 13:39 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 08/09/201814:01 :22 

18002831 08/08/2018 08:55 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 08/08/2018 10: 12: 11 

08/06/2018 22:52 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 08/06/2018 23:28:04 

08/06/2018 22:13 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 08/06/2018 22:48:00 

08/06/201817:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 08/06/2018 17:12:53 

08/06/2018 12:55 OFFICER ADVICE 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 08/06/2018 14:00:19 

18002795 08/05/2018 18:36 THEFT - DEL TA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 08/05/2018 19:14:22 

08/04/2018 20:14 WELFARE CHECK - 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 08/04/2018 20:19:0C 

08/04/2018 16:51 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 08/04/2018 16:54:3€ 

08/03/2018 22:32 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 08/03/2018 22:43:12 

18002737 08/02/2018 06:06 FOUND PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 03 RPT 08/02/2018 07:00:12 

08/01/2018 20:34 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 08/01/2018 20:51 :12 

07/31/2018 17:27 ANIMAL 930 OLD STEESE HWY 911 07/31/2018 17:39:41 

18002700 07/30/201817:19 ASSAULT- DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 RPT 07/30/2018 18:53:57 

07/29/2018 18:29 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY S9 NRP 07/29/2018 18:45:0!: 

07/29/2018 15:53 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 07/29/2018 16:12:21 

18002678 07/28/2018 21 :54 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 07/28/2018 21:56:02 

07/27/201816:48 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 07/27/2018 17:00:57 

07/26/2018 14:59 THREAT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 07/26/2018 16:19:55 

18002631 07/25/2018 14:15 MVC - NO INJURIES - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 RPT 07/25/2018 15:16:47 

07/24/2018 08:58 911 HANG-UP - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 911 07/24/2018 08:59:22 

07/23/2018 22:49 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 07/23/2018 22:52:03 

07/23/2018 16:56 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 07/23/2018 18:00:0E 

07/23/2018 16:42 ABUSE/NEGLECT/ASA 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 07/23/2018 19:09:27 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy Page 3 of 1 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 18 of 38



Prime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

07/23/2018 15:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 07/23/2018 15:42:41 

07/22/2018 21:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 07/22/2018 21 :43:4C 

18002587 07/22/2018 16:45 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 07/22/2018 17:14:09 

07/22/2018 15:10 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 07/22/2018 15:14:12 

18002586 07/22/201815:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 07/22/2018 16:19:29 

07/21/2018 21:27 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 COM 07/21/2018 22:01:17 

07/21/2018 20:17 SI - FIELD CONTACT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 07/21/2018 20:35:4: 

18002576 07/21/2018 19:52 VIOLATION OF CRT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 RPT 07/21/2018 20:55:01 

07/21/2018 19:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 07/21/2018 19:26:51 

18002447 07/21/2018 08:08 ADMINISTRATIVE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 041 RPT 07/21/2018 08:43:1: 

07/21/2018 02:22 OFFICER ADVICE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 021 NRP 07/21/2018 03:01 :46 

18002560 07/20/2018 20:35 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 07/20/2018 21:32:0E 

07/20/2018 17:12 SI -VID 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 07/20/2018 17:25: 17 

07/20/2018 13:28 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 07/20/2018 13:54:57 

07/17/2018 13:36 FOUND PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 07/17/2018 14:01 :42 

18002518 07/17/2018 12:42 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 RPT 07/17/2018 13:55:47 

18002501 07/16/2018 00:58 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 07/16/2018 02:13:56 

18002495 07/15/2018 18:49 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 07/15/2018 18:51 :4: 

07/15/2018 13:48 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 07/15/2018 14:09:~ 

07/14/201819:01 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 07/14/201819:04:2: 

07/14/2018 16:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 07/14/2018 18:02:22 

07/14/2018 07:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 041 NRP 07/14/2018 08:14:59 

07/13/2018 01:29 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 WAR 0111312018 01:37:3e 

07/11/2018 15:45 PARKING COMPLAINT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 07/11/2018 16:39:44 

07/11/2018 13:45 HIT & RUN 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 07/11/2018 14:03:52 

18002436 07/10/2018 20:09 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 07/10/2018 20:42:59 

07/10/2018 18:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 034 911 07/10/2018 19:02:H: 

18002428 07/10/201813:53 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 RPT 07/10/2018 15:30:26 

07/09/201811:24 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 07/09/2018 11 :46:24 

18002393 07/07/201815:15 FRAUD/FORGERY 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 RPT 07/07/2018 16:41 :14 

07/07/201813:41 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 07/07/2018 13:49:5: 

18002377 07/06/2018 15:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 07/06/2018 17:56:49 

18002099 07/03/201810:02 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 RPT 07/03/201810:29:12 

07/02/2018 12:28 DRUGS - USE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 011021201813:01:oe 

07/02/201811:18 PAST TRAFFIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 07/02/2018 13:07:41 

07/01/2018 21 :17 URGENT WELFARE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 07/01/2018 21 :32:02 

07/01/2018 20:00 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 NRP 07/01/2018 20:31:02 

18002287 06/30/2018 21 :28 PAST VEHICLE THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 RPT 06/30/2018 23:01 :OC 

06/30/201815:15 MVC - NO INJURIES - 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 06/30/2018 15:27:42 

18002271 06/29/2018 21 :33 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 RPT 06/29/2018 22:46:0~ 

06/29/2018 19:40 SI - FLAG DOWN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 040 NRP 06/29/2018 19:48:SC 

18002239 06/28/201819:56 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 06/28/2018 20:47:27 

06/28/201818:46 SI - SECURITY CHECK 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 06/28/2018 18:51:2e 

06/28/2018 18:15 DUI - PARKED - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 06/28/2018 18:45:29 

06/26/2018 17:07 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 06/26/201817:11:47 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy Page 4 of 1 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 19 of 38



?rime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

18002223 06/26/2018 16:30 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 06/26/201816:51 :21 

06/24/2018 21 :22 HARASSMENT· 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 06/24/2018 21:58:19 

06/24/2018 20:40 HARASSMENT - P2C 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 06/24/2018 21 :32:27 

06/24/2018 20:28 THREAT· BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 06/24/2018 20:41 :29, 

06/23/2018 17:29 SI - FLAG DOWN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 06/23/2018 17:45:55 

06/22/2018 19:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY SUBL 06/22/2018 19:23:42 

06/22/2018 12:55 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 06/22/2018 12:57:14 

06/21/201817:31 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 06/21/2018 17:52:47 

06/21/2018 13:48 SI· AOA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 NRP 06/21/2018 13:53:52 

06/21/2018 13:13 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 06/21/201813:45:27 

18002112 06/19/2018 22:19 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 RPT 0012012018 01 :55:3e 

06/19/2018 21:49 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 930 OLD STEESE HWY VIP1 NRP 06/19/2018 21 :53:1 E 

18002109 06/19/2018 21:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 RPT 06/19/2018 22:42:02 

18002051 06/15/2018 19:59 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 06/15/2018 20:05:46 

18002037 06/14/201816:23 SI - FIELD CONTACT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 06/14/201817:16:14 

06/14/2018 14:47 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 06/14/2018 15:40:14 

06/13/201818:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 06/13/201818:38:03 

06/12/2018 17:46 HARASSMENT - P2C 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 06/12/2018 20:13:57 

06/12/2018 13:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY SUBL 06/12/2018 14:06:39 

06/12/2018 11 :21 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 06/12/2018 11: 32:52 

06/11/2018 12:44 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 06/11/201813:21:21 

06/09/2018 19:55 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 06/09/2018 19:59:46 

18001980 06/09/2018 15:59 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 RPT 06/09/2018 17:04:25 

06/09/2018 15:01 MVC - NO INJURIES - 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 06/09/2018 15:26:42 

18001969 06/08/2018 22:00 THEFT FROM 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 06/08/2018 22:55:37 

18001967 06/08/2018 21:24 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 06/08/2018 22:09:2C 

06/08/201819:52 WELFARE CHECK - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 06/08/2018 20: 12:06 

06/08/2018 18:19 SI - FIELD CONTACT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 06/08/2018 18:29:55 

06/06/2018 17:19 SI· FLAG DOWN 930 OLD STEESE HWY S9 NRP 06/06/2018 17:29:1C 

06/05/2018 18:43 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 06/05/2018 18:59:42 

06/05/2018 13:46 SI - FLAG DOWN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 06/05/2018 13:52:41 

06/04/2018 17:35 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY LOG 06/04/2018 17:41:36 

06/02/2018 16:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 06/02/2018 16:36:0E 

05/28/2018 13:07 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 05/28/2018 13:39:12 

05/25/2018 22:43 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 05/25/2018 23:09:47 

05/25/2018 14:05 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 05/25/2018 14:38:5€ 

18001766 05/24/2018 23:22 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 05/24/2018 23:25:55 

05/23/2018 17:47 DUI - MOVING - 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 05/23/201817:57:11 

18001739 05/22/2018 18:30 PAST THEFT -BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 RPT 05/22/2018 19:30:52 

18001724 05/21/2018 17:00 SI - FIELD CONTACT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 05/21/2018 18:06:4C 

05/20/2018 19:11 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 05/20/2018 19:36:12 

18001699 05/19/2018 16:56 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 RPT 05/19/2018 18:07:47 

05/19/201812:05 DAMAGENANDALISM 930 OLD STEESE HWY LOG 05119/2018 12:12:11 

18001689 05/18/2018 17:47 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 05/18/2018 20:26:57 

05/17/201812:35 PAST DOMESTIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 05/17/2018 14:18:42 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy Page 5 of 1 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 20 of 38



Prime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

05/15/2018 20:34 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 05/16/201815:06:3!: 

18001620 05/13/2018 12:10 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 RPT 05/13/2018 12:55:4€ 

18001607 05/12/2018 16:57 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 05/12/2018 17:02:2€ 

05/11/2018 19:45 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY SUBL 05/11/2018 20: 11 :OC 

05/08/2018 19:30 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 05/08/2018 19:4 7:26 

18001546 05/07/2018 19:07 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 036 RPT 05/07/2018 19:57:4€ 

05/04/2018 17:36 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 05/04/2018 18:06:51 

05/03/2018 17:22 MINOR TRAF 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 05/03/2018 21 :28:49 

18001485 05/03/2018 15:19 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY L6 RPT 0510312018 15:23:5e 

05/03/2018 09:50 URGENT WELFARE 930 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 05/03/2018 10:33:0S 

18001476 05/02/2018 15:35 MVA INJURY - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 RPT 05/02/2018 17:56:57 

05/02/2018 15:34 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 0510212018 15:37:2e 

05/02/2018 11 :14 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 NRP 05/02/2018 11 :40:09 

05/01/201811:33 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 05/01/201812:01:1€ 

04/29/2018 16:53 DRUGS - USE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 034 NRP 04/29/201817:07:1( 

04/27/2018 20:33 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 04/27/2018 23:13:2C 

18001417 04/27/2018 12:10 DRUGS - USE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 0412112018 14:43:oe 

18001387 04/25/201811:56 SI - FIELD CONTACT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 RPT 04/25/2018 13:36:53 

04/25/2018 11: 18 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY S1 NRP 04/25/2018 12:20:27 

18001366 04/23/201818:10 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 04/23/2018 18:39:36 

04/22/2018 22:34 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 04/22/2018 22:36:3!: 

04/20/2018 20:55 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 04/20/2018 20:59:41 

18001329 04/20/201818:57 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 04/20/2018 19:00: 12 

04/16/2018 18:52 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 04/18/2018 16:03:12 

04/16/2018 15:44 MVC - NO INJURIES - 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 04/16/201815:51:47 

18001257 04/15/2018 21:50 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 04/15/2018 22:48: 1 C 

18001254 04/15/2018 16:39 THEFT FROM 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 04/15/201817:41 :54 

04/14/2018 21:35 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 04/14/2018 21:43:06 

04/13/2018 14:51 MVC - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 04/13/2018 14:56:0-4 

18001216 04/12/2018 13:04 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 04/12/201813:29:27 

18001216 04/12/2018 07:21 PAST BURGLARY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 04/12/2018 08:45:54 

04/11/2018 21:14 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 04/11/2018 21 :46:08 

04/11/201812:26 HARASSMENT- P2C 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 04/11/2018 12:51 :28 

18001197 04/10/2018 22:20 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 04/10/2018 22:24:41 

04/10/2018 11 :44 REDD! 930 OLD STEESE HWY S1 NRP 04/10/2018 12:22:0C 

04/08/2018 22:27 SI - FLAG DOWN 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 04/08/2018 23:37:06 

04/08/2018 00:31 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY S8 NRP 04/08/2018 00:56:32 

04/07/2018 21 :32 VERBAL DOMESTIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY S9 NRP 04/07/2018 21 :48:32 

04/06/2018 16:19 SI -VID 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 04/06/2018 16:29:52 

04/03/2018 05:33 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY 03 NRP 04/03/2018 05:45:5€ 

03/31/2018 17:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 0313112018 11:21 :3e 

03/30/201810:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 SUBL 03/30/201810:56:53 

03/27/2018 18:45 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 03/27/2018 18:47:51 

03/26/2018 20:57 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 03/26/2018 21 :06:3€ 

03/26/2018 14:09 FOUND PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 03/26/2018 14:25:03 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy Page 6 of 1 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 21 of 38



Prime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Uriit Disp. Close Time 

03/26/2018 12:31 SI· FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 03/26/2018 12:43:02 

03/26/2018 07:43 THREAT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 03/26/2018 08:14:07 

18001025 03/26/2018 00:00 FRAUD/FORGERY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 036 RPT 03/2612018 00:42:se 

18001012 03/24/2018 23:23 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 RPT 03/25/2018 00:22:01 

03/24/2018 22:36 SI - ADMIN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 0312412018 22:40:3e 

03/24/2018 19:17 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY DUP 03/24/2018 20:56:34 

03/24/2018 16:39 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 03/24/2018 17:07:35 

18001004 03/24/201816:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 RPT 0312412018 11:00:se 

03/22/2018 20:35 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY LOG 03/22/2018 20:40:37 

03/22/201819:44 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 03/22/2018 20:07:03 

03/21/201811:49 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 03/21/2018 12:34:45 

03/20/201814:26 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 DEF 0312012018 14:56:3e 

03/18/2018 18:57 DUI - PARKED - 930 OLD STEESE HWY S9 NRP 03/18/2018 19:50:06 

03/17/201819:37 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 03/17/2018 19:45:22 

03/17/201813:27 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 03/17/2018 13:52:42 

03/16/2018 12:27 HIT & RUN 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 03/16/2018 12:34:46 

03/15/2018 20:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 03/15/2018 21 :22:32 

18000904 03/15/201814:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 RPT 03/15/2018 15:16:42 

18000884 03/14/2018 10:40 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 RPT 03/14/2018 12:27:19 

03/13/2018 07:13 SI -AOA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 NRP 03/13/2018 07:20: 17 

03/11/2018 20:18 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 03/11/2018 20:35:11 

03/11/2018 18:20 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY LOG 03/11/2018 18:28:27 

18000848 03/10/2018 13:15 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 RPT 03/10/2018 14:46:14 

18000836 03/10/2018 13:00 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 03/10/2018 15:00:34 

03/09/2018 17:21 DUI· PARKED - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 034 NRP 03/09/201818:01:11 

03/08/2018 20:53 SUSPICIOUS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 03/08/2018 21 :25:42 

03/08/201816:29 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 03/08/2018 17:14:52 

03/06/2018 07:49 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 03/06/2018 08:02:47 

03/05/2018 09:23 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 WAR 03/05/2018 09:30:09 

03/03/2018 16:22 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 UTC 03/03/2018 17:59:24 

03/03/2018 14:29 ASSAULT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 NRP 03/03/2018 17:58:47 

18000719 03/01/201815:53 SUPPLEMENTAL- 930 OLD STEESE HWY 141 RPT 03/01/2018 16:17:36 

02/28/2018 19:00 ASSAULT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 02/28/2018 20:01 :02 

18000693 02/25/2018 22:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 RPT 02/25/2018 23:52:52 

18000690 02/25/2018 15:29 INCAPACITATED 930 OLD STEESE HWY 034 RPT 02/25/201816:18:49 

18000676 02/24/2018 11 :54 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 02/24/2018 13:36: 11 

18000652 02/22/2018 14:05 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 02/22/2018 14:09:41 

02/18/2018 19:22 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 02/18/2018 20:03:31 

02/18/2018 17: 17 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 53 NRP 02/18/2018 17:29:49 

02/17/201819:33 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY SUBL 02/17/2018 19:41 :2S 

02/17/2018 14:29 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 02/17/2018 15:35:22 

02/16/2018 15:13 OFFICER ADVICE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 07 NRP 02/16/201815:31:52 

18000562 02/16/2018 14:34 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 02/16/201816:03:41 

02/14/2018 15:09 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 02/14/2018 15:25:21 

02/14/2018 00:06 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 WAR 02/14/2018 00:13:2C 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 22 of 38



Prime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Dlsp. Close Time 

02/13/2018 21:20 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY S10 NRP 02/13/2018 21 :42:54 

02/13/2018 09:27 SI - SECURITY CHECK 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 02/13/2018 09:31 :21 

02/12/2018 22:22 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY L7 NRP 02/12/2018 22:54:4: 

02/12/2018 16:38 LOST PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 02/12/2018 16:55:36 

02/12/2018 15:37 HIT & RUN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 02/12/2018 15:39:57 

18000515 02/12/201813:37 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY L5 RPT 02/12/2018 16:30:33 

02/10/2018 19:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY SUBL 02/10/2018 19:27:53 

18000501 02/10/2018 16:38 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 02/10/2018 16:40:34 

02/09/201819:59 SI - SECURITY CHECK 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 02/09/2018 20:05:4€ 

02/09/2018 19:44 HARASSMENT· 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 02/09/2018 20:47:22 

18000468 02/08/2018 12:37 CARJACKING - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 02 RPT 02/08/2018 18: 16:2€ 

02/05/2018 22:36 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 02/05/2018 22:51 :26 

02/05/2018 18:44 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 034 NRP 021os12018 19:20:2e 

18000442 02/05/201814:57 WELFARE CHECK - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 RPT 02/05/2018 16:38:19 

02/05/201810:40 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 02/05/2018 10:46:46 

02/05/2018 03:05 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 032 UTC 02/05/2018 03:22:32 

02/04/2018 12:12 DUI· PARKED· 930 OLD STEESE HWY S5 NRP 02/04/2018 13:32:39 

02/03/2018 19:51 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY S3 NRP 02/03/2018 20:20:43 

01/30/2018 16:16 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/30/2018 16:35:46 

01/29/2018 17:06 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 01/29/2018 17:42:09 

01/29/201810:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 01/29/2018 10:09:43 

01/29/2018 09:47 LOST PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/29/2018 09:51 :O!: 

01/28/201817:56 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 01/28/2018 18:29:0: 

01/28/2018 14:57 FOUND PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/28/2018 16:35:2!: 

01/27/2018 15:55 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 911 01/27/201816:01:C>e 

18000312 01/26/201817:18 PAST VEHICLE THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 RPT 01/26/2018 19:02:32 

18000291 01/24/2018 20:40 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 01/24/2018 20:46:57 

01/19/2018 09:47 LOST PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/19/2018 09:52:16 

01/19/2018 07:30 ADMINISTRATIVE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 08 NRP 01/19/201816:17:1: 

01/18/2018 22:24 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 01/18/2018 22:45:13 

01/18/2018 20:52 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 01/18/2018 21 :12:31 

01/18/2018 20:30 REDDI 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 SUBL 01/18/2018 21 :17:3: 

01/18/201818:53 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 01/18/201819:07:03 

01/18/2018 18:37 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 01/18/2018 18:46:32 

01/18/2018 15:12 LOST PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/18/2018 15:26:59 

01/17/2018 17:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 01/17/2018 17:35:5e 

01/16/2018 15:19 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 01/16/2018 15:49: 11 

01/15/201818:43 THREATENING 930 OLD STEESE HWY 06 NRP 01/15/2018 20:05:51 

01/15/2018 14:08 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 01/15/2018 14:47:2C 

01/13/201816:12 HARASSMENT- P2C 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/13/2018 16:18:57 

18000155 01/13/2018 12:02 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 01/13/201812:52:37 

01/10/2018 17:23 REDDI 930 OLD STEESE HWY S7 NRP 01/10/2018 17:40:02 

01/08/2018 14:15 LOST PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/08/2018 15:01 :57 

01/07/2018 14:18 DRUGS - USE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 01/07/2018 17:57:17 

01/07/2018 13:23 SUPPLEMENTAL- 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 01101,2018 13:47:oe 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy Page 8 of 1 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 23 of 38



Prime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

18000069 01/06/2018 20:06 SUPPLEMENT AL- 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 RPT 01/06/2018 22:42:33 

01/06/2018 19:45 HIT & RUN 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 01/06/2018 19:51:34 

18000069 01/06/2018 17:21 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLiD STEESE HWY 01 RPT 01/06/2018 18:43:43 

17004443 01/06/2018 14:56 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 01/06/2018 15:02:3C 

17004477 01/06/2018 14:11 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 01/06/2018 15:01:33 

01/05/2018 20:18 INCAPACITATED 930 OLD STEESE HWY ACCI 01/05/2018 20:20:02 

18000044 01/04/2018 07:22 ASSAULT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 RPT 01/04/2018 09:58:31 

01/03/2018 09:57 PAST MVC -ALPHA 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 01/03/2018 10:25:Je 

01/01/2018 19:56 OFFICER ADVICE 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 01/01/2018 23:02:4t 

01/01/2018 09:41 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 NRP 0110112018 09:50:2e 

18000006 01/01/2018 08:13 WANTED PERSON - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 039 RPT 01/01/2018 09:09:57 

17004503 12/30/2017 19:54 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 12/30/2017 19:56:03 

12/29/2017 16:00 PAST TRAFFIC 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 12/29/2017 16:38:57 

12/28/2017 09:23 AOA- NON URGENT - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 1212812011 09:46:se 

17004459 12/26/2017 15:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 RPT 12/26/2017 16:31:52 

12/24/2017 19:19 WELFARE CHECK 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 12/24/2017 20:46:24 

12/23/2017 15:10 MVC- NO INJURIES- 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 12/23/2017 15:21 :04 

12/23/2017 09:41 10-36 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 WAR 12/23/2017 09:48:22 

12/22/2017 16:36 MINOR TRAF 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 NRP 12/22/2017 16:49:32 

17004404 12/21/2017 19:37 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 12/21/201719:40:16 

12/19/2017 16:00 MISCELLANEOUS - 930 OLD STEESE HWY LOG 12/19/2017 16:01:5e 

17004219 12/18/2017 08:04 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 12/18/2017 08:28:09 

12/18/2017 07:37 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 12/18/2017 08:03:57 

12/17/2017 22:18 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 12/17/2017 22:53:44 

17004219 12/17/2017 12:16 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 1211112011 12:33:oe 

12/16/2017 15:32 DRUGS - USE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 017 NRP 12/16/2017 15:53:19 

17004362 12/16/2017 15:03 AITEMPTED THEFT- 930 OLD STEESE HWY 141 RPT 12/18/2017 07:08:5e 

17004312 12/13/201713:36 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 RPT 12/13/2017 14:30:1C 

12/13/201711:05 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 022 NRP 1211312011 11 :48:3e 

12/11/2017 18:16 LOST PROPERTY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 12/11/2017 18:48:5C 

12/10/2017 09:16 SI -SECURITY CHECK 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 12/10/2017 09:27:51 

12/09/2017 15:10 MVC- NO INJURIES - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 12/09/2017 15:21:21 

12/09/201711:31 MVC- NO INJURIES- 930 OLD STEESE HWY CAL.1.. 12/09/2017 11 :43:52 

17004245 12/08/2017 15:46 THEFT-SUSP DET. & 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 12/08/2017 15:49: 17 

17004230 12/07/2017 16:01 ASSAULT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY S7 RPT 12/07/2017 16:40:2t 

12/07/2017 13:21 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 1210112011 13:26:2e 

17004215 12/06/2017 22:37 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 RPT 12/06/2017 23:27:02 

12/06/201719:22 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 030 NRP 1210012011 19:47:2e 

17004192 12/05/2017 14:03 FRAUD/FORGERY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 RPT 12/05/2017 14:49:13 

12/04/2017 23:10 MINOR TRAF 930 OLD STEESE HWY SUBL 1210412011 23:16:2e 

12/02/2017 22:41 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 12/02/2017 23:31 :59 

12/02/2017 21 :14 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 12/02/2017 21 : 14:5C 

12/02/2017 17:19 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 NRP 12/02/2017 17:42:11 

17004137 12/01/2017 11 :03 VEHICLE THEFT - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 026 RPT 12/01/2017 11 :58:29 

17004129 11/30/2017 20:32 THEFT - DELTA 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 RPT 11/30/2017 22:43:04 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy Page 9 of 1 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 24 of 38



Prime 

Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

11/30/201718:53 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 025 NRP 11/30/2017 19:13:34 

11/30/2017 15:27 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 11/30/2017 16:19:SC 

17004122 11/29/2017 16:32 FRAUD/FORGERY- 930 OLD STEESE HWY 011 RPT 11/29/2017 18:37:SC 

11/29/201715:17 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 029 NRP 11/29/2017 16:29:01 

11/27/201711:18 HIT & RUN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 11/27/2017 11 :40:56 

11/27/2017 05:47 911 HANG-UP- 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 11/27/2017 05:50:21 

11/26/2017 21 :37 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 11/26/2017 21 :50:5C 

11/26/201718:46 WELFARE CHECK - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 11/26/2017 19:51 :28 

17004051 11/25/2017 12:00 ADMINISTRATIVE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 11/25/201713:12:03 

11/24/2017 20:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY COM 11/24/2017 20:50:12 

17004072 11/24/2017 08:37 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 RPT 11/24/2017 09:30:36 

17004065 11/23/201717:39 PAST THEFT- BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 11/23/2017 18:42:52 

17004055 11/22/2017 18:11 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 030 RPT 11/22/2017 19:16:51 

11/21/2017 12:36 MISCELLANEOUS - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 026 NRP 11/21/2017 13:17:13 

17004035 11/21/201700:22 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 11/21/2017 00:28:42 

11/20/2017 07:45 SI - FOLLOW-UP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 11/20/2017 13:19:2C 

17004013 11/18/2017 20:08 THEFT-SUSP DET. & 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 11 /18/201'7 20:49:34 

11/17/2017 22:18 SI -SECURITY CHECK 930 OLD STEESE HWY 510 NRP 11/17/2017 22:28:49 

11/17/2017 19:22 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 510 NRP 11/17/2017 20:19:27 

17003999 11/17/2017 11 :13 PAST HIT & RUN - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 036 RPT 11/17/2017 14:47:5C 

11/16/2017 12:37 NUISANCE - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 SUBL 11/16/2017 13:20:53 

11/08/2017 16:12 FRAUD/FORGERY - 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK NRP 11/08/2017 16:15:24 

17003863 11/05/2017 19:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 11/05/2017 19:40:0C 

11/04/2017 18:22 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 11/04/2017 18:40:37 

11/03/201719:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 030 NRP 11/03/2017 21:50:36 

11/03/2017 18:27 PD PROQA 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 11/03/2017 18:30:04 

11/03/2017 12:55 SI - FLAG DOWN 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 11/03/2017 13:11 :22 

17003831 11/03/201712:52 PAST THEFT· BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 11/03/2017 13:23:46 

11/01/2017 18:43 MVC - NO INJURIES - 930 OLD STEESE HWY LOG 11/01/201719:02:04 

11/01/2017 14:03 DISTURBANCE - 930 OLD STEESE HWY 030 NRP 11/01/2017 14:17:51 

10/31/2017 16:50 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 10/31/2017 17:32:23 

10/31/2017 12:23 ADMINISTRATIVE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 10/31/2017 17:50:3C 

17003789 10/30/2017 22:26 DUI - PARKED· 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 RPT 10/31/2017 00:44:38 

10/29/2017 18:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 030 NRP 10/29/2017 18:03:54 

10/28/2017 16:44 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 10/28/2017 16:59:5!: 

10/27/2017 15:18 INCAPACITATED 930 OLD STEESE HWY 09 NRP 10/27/2017 15:38:49 

10/26/2017 19:05 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY 017 NRP 10/26/2017 19:38:13 

17003734 10/26/2017 15:07 THEFT FROM 930 OLD STEESE HWY DESK RPT 10/26/2017 16:11 :22 

10/24/2017 22:03 TRESPASS 930 OLD STEESE HWY CALL 10/2412017 22:09:07 

10/24/201718:40 SUSP 930 OLD STEESE HWY 01 NRP 10/24/2017 19:34:3( 

10/23/201718:35 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 017 NRP 10/23/2017 19:00:01 

10/22/2017 19:14 URGENT W ELFARE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 10/22/2017 19:37:49 

17003673 10/21/2017 20:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 RPT 10/21/2017 21:24:4( 

10/21/2017 18:50 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 05 NRP 1012112011 19:09:3e 

10/21/2017 16:31 REDDI 930 OLD STEESE HWY 04 NRP 10/21/2017 16:38:5€ 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 25 of 38



Report# 

17003585 

Call Time Nature Location 

10/20/201718:22 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 930 OLD STEESE HWY 

10/18/2017 09:39 THREAT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 

10/15/2017 14:40 RETAIL THEFT 930 OLD STEESE HWY 

10/14/2017 15:40 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 930 OLD STEESE HWY 

Prime 
Unit Disp. 

05 NRP 

015 NRP 

DESK RPT 

COM 

Total Number of Events Listed: 450 

FRED MEYER 930 Old Steese Hwy 

Close Time 

101201201119:06:5e 

10/18/2017 09:52:49 

10/15/2017 14:43:09 

10/14/2017 15:47:54 

Page 11 of 1 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 26 of 38



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY 
DROP INN LOUNGE 1420 S. Cushman St 

10/14/2017 - 10/14/2018 

Prime 
Report# Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

09/22/2018 00:23 DISTURBANCE - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 05 NRP 09/22/2018 00:36: 1 C 

18003380 09/18/2018 01:06 THEFT FROM 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 015 RPT 09/18/2018 10:41 :22 

08/29/2018 02:27 DISTURBANCE - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 040 NRP 08/29/2018 02:52:31 

08/27/2018 20:15 SI - FIELD CONTACT 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 04 NRP 08/27/2018 20:19:5€ 

18002836 08/08/2018 14:34 SI - FIELD CONTACT 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 06 RPT 08/08/2018 16:04:17 

07/21/2018 11 :44 SUSPICIOUS 1420 S CUSHMAN ST LOG 07/21/2018 11 :49:2C 

06/22/2018 09:23 DIRECTED PATROL 1420 S CUSHMAN ST S5 UTC 06/22/2018 09:35:3C 

06/10/2018 10:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 1420 S CUSHMAN ST CALL 06/10/201810:40:44 

06/02/2018 00:57 SI - FLAG DOWN 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 03 NRP 0010212018 01 :04:2e 

05/17/2018 09:31 10-36 1420 S CUSHMAN ST S1 NRP 05/17/2018 09:44:0C 

05/01/2018 18:13 SI - FIELD CONTACT 1420 S CUSHMAN ST L7 NRP 05/01/2018 18:14:54 

18001386 04/25/2018 01:54 FRAUD- OVERRIDE - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST S8 RPT 04/25/2018 02:42:0!: 

04/24/2018 20:26 DUI - PARKED - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 041 NRP 04/24/2018 20:41:21 

04/15/2018 00:23 INCAPACITATED 1420 S CUSHMAN ST COM 04/15/2018 00:39:5C 

03/25/2018 02:50 10-36 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 036 UTC 03/25/2018 03:13:29 

03/16/2018 22:33 REDDI 1420 S CUSHMAN ST CBO 03/16/2018 22:50:12 

03/15/2018 15:49 DISTURBANCE - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 029 NRP 03/15/2018 16:27:09 

03/06/2018 00:46 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 07 NRP 03/06/2018 01 :02:49 

02/18/2018 00:42 10-36 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 035 WAR 02/18/2018 00:46:52 

02/17/2018 21 :11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 04 NRP 02/17/2018 21 :49:17 

18000575 02/17/2018 13:25 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 07 RPT 02/17/2018 19:08:06 

02/16/2018 22:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 01 NRP 02/16/2018 22:35:0C 

18000393 02/01/2018 23:39 10-36 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 016 RPT 02/01/2018 23:42:12 

01/14/2018 04:30 URGENT WELFARE 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 036 NRP 01/14/2018 04:44:52 

17004374 12/18/2017 21:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 017 RPT 12/18/2017 22:43:32 

12/08/2017 01:58 10-36 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 016 WAR 1210812011 02:01: 1 e 
12/07/2017 09:50 TRAF HAZNEH/COND 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 026 NRP 12/07/2017 10:00:17 

12/03/2017 01 :37 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 08 NRP 12/03/2017 01 :50: 1 g 

11/01/2017 22:35 AOA- NON URGENT - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 025 NRP 11/01/2017 23:03:57 

10/30/2017 14:06 DISTURBANCE - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 09 NRP 10/30/2017 14:18:02 

17003785 10/30/201712:35 PAST VEHICLE THEFT 1420 S CUSHMAN ST S7 RPT 10/30/2017 16:43:42 

17003707 10/24/2017 16:04 DISTURBANCE - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 04 RPT 10/24/2017 18:28:07 

10/14/2017 23:55 DISTURBANCE - 1420 S CUSHMAN ST S9 NRP 10/15/2017 00:15:5C 

17003563 10/14/2017 03:31 ASSAULT- DELTA 1420 S CUSHMAN ST 016 RPT 1011412011 04:38: 1 e 
Total Number of Events Listed: 34 

Report Generated: 10/15/2018 10:06:28 I User ID: 1225 
\ lfRr.r.-Rnn\n.<:.<:ir:;orl\r.;,rl\rnl\l=v,,n/1-/i<:lnrv l=v,,n/1 i<:tWilhP1>nnrtN, 1mhl>r<: n ........... "' ..... & City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 27 of 38



Introduced by: Mayor Matherly 
Date:  November 5, 2018 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6089 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FAIRBANKS GENERAL 
CODE CHAPTER 46, ARTICLE IV, OFFENSES 

INVOLVING NUISANCES, BY ENACTING DIVISION 4, 
ILLEGAL CAMPSITES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks, in conjunction with other state and local 

agencies, has worked to address the need for housing and other services for the 
homeless population; and 

 
WHEREAS, because of these efforts, the Fairbanks area does not have a 

shortage of safe shelter options for the homeless population; and 
 
WHEREAS, despite these available shelter options, many people continue to 

occupy illegal campsites; and 
 
WHEREAS, these illegal campsites are not designed for camping, do not have 

adequate facilities for disposal of trash and waste, tend to foster drug and alcohol use 
and other illegal activities, and put vulnerable populations at risk.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 

Section 1.  Fairbanks General Code Chapter 46, Article IV, Offenses Involving 
Nuisances, is hereby amended by adding a new Division 4 as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 46. OFFENSES 

ARTICLE IV. OFFENSES INVOLVING NUISANCES 

DIVISION 4. ILLEGAL CAMPSITES 

Sec. 46-186.  Illegal Campsites Prohibited.  

  (a) An illegal campsite is an area where one or more persons are camping on publicly 
owned land that has not been designated for camping by the governmental entity that 
owns the land or has authority over the property.   
 
  (b) An illegal campsite is subject to abatement by the city.  In addition, a person who 
continues to camp after being notified that the site is an illegal campsite is subject to 
prosecution for criminal trespass under AS 11.46.330.   
 
Sec. 46-187.  Abatement; required notice. 
 
  (a) When the public land where an illegal campsite is located is posted with no 
trespassing signage, no camping signage, or as not being open to the public, including 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 28 of 38



Ordinance No. 6089 
Page 2 

posting of closed hours, the abatement of a campsite on such land may proceed without 
additional notice, after the occupants of the illegal campsite are provided at least one 
hour to remove their personal property.  Personal property not removed by the 
occupants may be disposed of in accordance with the provisions of this Division.  
 
  (b) When an illegal campsite is located on public land not posted as provided in 
subsection (a), a notice of campsite abatement must be placed at the entrance of each 
tent, lean-to, or other shelter.  The notice must also be given orally to any person in or 
around the illegal campsite or any person who identifies as an occupant of the 
campsite.    
 
  (c) The notice required under subsection (c) shall:   
 

(1) State the approximate location of the campsite, the code provision 
under which the campsite is illegal, and that the campsite may be 
removed under the procedures set forth in FGC Sec. 46-188 or 46-
189; 

 
(2) Identify whether it is a 72-hour notice or a 10-day notice;    

 
(3) Include contact and location information for reclaiming the property 

or disclaiming an interest in it, if the personal property is to be 
stored by the City; and  

 
(4) State that an appeal of the abatement may be filed with the mayor’s 

office and include the deadline for filing an appeal, the mayor’s 
address, telephone number, and email address.   

 
Sec. 46-188.  Abatement – 10-day notice.   
 
  (a) The city may post an illegal campsite with a notice stating all personal property not 
removed within 10 days of the date and time the notice is posted may be removed and 
disposed of as waste.  At the expiration of the 10-day period, personal property at the 
illegal campsite may be disposed of as waste if no person has come forward to claim 
the property. If the owner or person in possession of personal property at the time the 
notice is posted responds in writing of their intention to remove the personal property, 
the city shall not remove personal property for 10 days from the date of the person's 
response. If the personal property is not removed within that time, or in any case within 
20 days of the date the notice was first posted, it shall be conclusively presumed that 
the personal property is abandoned and may be summarily disposed of as waste.  
 
 
 
 
Sec. 46-189.  Abatement – 72-hour notice.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 29 of 38



Ordinance No. 6089 
Page 3 

  (a) In circumstances where the Police Chief has determined that the illegal campsite 
poses an imminent threat to public health or safety, the city may post an illegal campsite 
with a notice stating all personal property not removed within 72 hours of the date and 
time the notice is posted may be removed and stored by the city.   
 
  (b) The city may store the personal property removed from an illegal campsite in any 
reasonable manner.  At the time of removal, a notice shall be posted at the location, 
unless previously posted notices are still visible and accurate, with contact and location 
information for reclaiming personal property or disclaiming an interest in it.  If no person 
comes forward to claim the property, the city may dispose of the personal property 30 
days from the date a notice in subsection (a) was posted.  If the person in possession of 
the personal property at the time it was removed, or at the time the illegal campsite was 
posted, identifies it and disclaims any interest, the personal property may be disposed 
of immediately.  If the owner reclaims stored personal property, it shall be released to 
them.  
 
  (c) For purposes of this Division, the following criteria applies:  
 

(1) Junk, litter, garbage, debris, lumber, pallets, cardboard not used to 
store other personal items, and items that are spoiled, mildewed, or 
contaminated with human, biological or hazardous waste shall not 
be stored and may be disposed of summarily. 

 
(2) A weapon, firearm, ammunition, or contraband shall be delivered to 

the Fairbanks Police Department and processed in accordance with 
FGC Chapter 62, Art. II.   

 
  (d) If not subject to subsections (c)(1) or (c)(2), the following items, when in fair and 
usable condition and readily identifiable as such by persons engaged in removing an 
illegal campsite, shall be deemed valuable and eligible for storage:  
 

  (1) Tents and similar self-contained shelter;  
  (2)  Sleeping bags; 
  (3)  Tarps;  
  (4)  Toiletries and cosmetics;  
  (5)  Clocks and watches;  
  (6)  Medication; 
  (7)  Personal papers and identification;  
  (8)  Photographs;  
  (9)  Luggage, backpacks, and other storage containers;  
(10)  Books and other reading materials;  
(11)  Radios, audio and video equipment;  
(12)  Generators;  
(13)  Cooking equipment in clean condition;  
(14)  Shoes and clothing; and  

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 30 of 38



Ordinance No. 6089 
Page 4 

(15)  Property stored in a manner that reasonably suggests the owner 
intended to keep it.  

 
Sec. 46-190.  Abatement procedures.   
 
  (a) Before an illegal campsite is removed under Sec. 46-188 or 46-189, the 
responsible city official shall verify whether an appeal of the notice of campsite 
abatement was filed within the applicable time period.  If no timely appeal was filed, 
removal of the campsite may proceed.  If an appeal was timely filed, abatement of the 
campsite area is stayed until the appeal is withdrawn, settled, or a decision is issued 
and any subsequent appeal rights have expired.  At any time after the expiration of the 
notice period, the city may remove personal property and store it until either the appeal 
is withdrawn, settled, or a decision is issued, and any appeal rights have expired.  
Storage of personal property and its release shall be in accordance with Sec. 46-189.  
 
  (b) At the time removal is to begin, if any individuals are present at the campsite, they 
shall be verbally notified the campsite is illegal and to be abated.  Prior to actual 
removal, individuals present will be given a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed 
30 minutes, to gather their personal property and leave the property.  The responsible 
city official or persons working under their authority shall not prevent individuals 
claiming personal property from removing that property immediately unless the personal 
property is unlawful or otherwise evidence of criminal activity.  
 
  (c) Nothing in this section shall prevent:   

 
(1) A peace officer from conducting an investigation, search, or seizure 

in a manner otherwise consistent with the state and federal 
constitutions, or federal, state, or local law; 

 
(2) Lawful administrative inspection or entry into an illegal campsite, or 

prevent clean-up of garbage, litter, waste, or other unsanitary or 
hazardous conditions on public land at any time; or 

 
(3) Where exigent circumstances posing a serious risk to human life 

and safety exist, proceeding with the abatement of a campsite 
without prior notice. Personal property removed under this 
paragraph shall be stored in accordance with Section 46-189, to the 
extent reasonable and feasible under the circumstances.   

 
  (d) The city, its employees, and agents shall not be liable for damages as a result of an 
act or omission in the storage, destruction, disposition, or release of property under this 
Division, but this does not preclude an action for damages based on an intentional act 
of misconduct or an act of gross negligence.  The city, its employees, and agents shall 
not be liable in any case for release of property to a person when the personal property 
lacks affirmative marks identifying its owner.  
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 31 of 38



Ordinance No. 6089 
Page 5 

Sec. 46-191.  Appeals.  

  An abatement under this Division may be appealed to the mayor.  Any such appeal 
must be filed with the mayor’s office within 72 hours, for a 72-hour notice, or within 10 
days, for a 10-day notice, from the date the notice of campsite abatement was posted.  
The mayor shall conduct a hearing on the appeal within 10 business days of the filing of 
the appeal.  The mayor’s decision on the appeal is a final administrative decision, and 
appeals from it shall be to the superior court within 30 days from the date of the decision 
in accordance with the Alaska court rules.   
 
 
 Section 2.  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ____ day of 
November 2018. 
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 32 of 38



Introduced by:  Mayor Jim Matherly 
 Introduced:  November 19, 2018 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4853 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO APPLY 
FOR FUNDS FROM THE FIREHOUSE SUBS PUBLIC SAFETY 

FOUNDATION GRANT PROGRAM 
  

WHEREAS, the Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation provides funds to assist 
fire departments with the purchase of lifesaving equipment; and 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks Fire Department does not have a backup Zoll 
Monitor; and 

 
WHEREAS, this equipment is mission critical on our ambulances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks Fire Department must close an ambulance, 

reducing capacity by 33%, when a monitor needs to be serviced; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks wishes to request $33,880, and there is no 

match required. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or his 

designee  is authorized to execute any and all documents required to apply for funds on 
behalf of the City for this grant. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 19th Day of November 2018. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney  
 

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 33 of 38



  
 

 
 
 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4853

Abbreviated Title: APPLY FOR FUNDS FROM FIREHOUSE SUBS PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION

Department(s): FIRE DEPARTMENT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Equipment Building Personnel Total

$33,880       $33,880

   $0

   $0

   $0

   $0

 $0

$33,880 $0 $0 $33,880

Equipment Building Personnel Total

$33,880   $33,880

  $0

  $0

$33,880 $0 $0 $33,880
 

Initial CP Date 11/14/2018

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS

FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

Firehouse Subs Public Safety Foundation Grant

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:

PROJECTS:

Zoll Monitor

 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

 

 

TOTAL

Any maintenance or repair costs will be absorbed in the Fire Department General Fund Budget.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 34 of 38



City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 35 of 38



City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 36 of 38



City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 37 of 38



City Council Agenda Packet - November 19, 2018 38 of 38


	AGENDA - November 19, 2018
	MINUTES - July 23, 2018
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Liquor License Renewals

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 6089

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4853

	WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes - 09/05/2018
	Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes - 10/03/2018




